
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

8 September 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 16th September, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
in the Guildhall, South Street, Boston PE21 6HT 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Anton Dani 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown, 

Viven Edge, Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner and 
Yvonne Stevens 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 18) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last three meetings held on 6th & 20th July 
and 17th August 2021. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday, 13th September 2021. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   PILGRIM HOSPITAL OPERATING MODEL  
 

 A debate facilitated by the Chairman and the Committee’s Lead Officer, Andy 
Fisher (Assistant Director – Assets) and the following guests: 
 

 John Turner, Chief Executive, Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(LCCG) 

 Sandra Williamson, Chief Operating Officer, East Locality, Lincolnshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (LCCG) 

 Simon Evans, Chief Operating Officer, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 
(ULHT) 

 
 

2   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 19 - 20) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314227  email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

6 July 2021 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor Anton Dani (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown, Viven Edge, 
Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner, Yvonne Stevens and Nigel Welton 
 
In attendance:  
Councillor Deborah Evans and Councillor Jonathan Noble, Councillor Tracey Abbott, 
Councillor Peter Bedford, Councillor Michael Cooper, Councillor Paul Goodale, 
Councillor Neill Hastie and Councillor Peter Watson 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets, Interim Deputy Chief Executive (People), Environment & 
Sustainability Officer, Deputy Chief Executive (Place) & Monitoring Officer and Section 
151 Officer 
 
1   MINUTES 

 
Committee agreed the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 April 2021. 
 
2   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were tabled from committee members Councillors Tom Ashton 
and Martin Howard.  Councillor Judith Welbourn substituting for Councillor Martin 
Howard.   
Councillor Anne Dorrian who had intended to attend as an observer tabled her 
apologies. 
 
3   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillor Yvonne Stevens declared that she had previously held the post of Portfolio 
Holder in respect of the first report on the agenda. 
Councillor Alison Austin declared she was a member of Lincolnshire County Council. 
 
4   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
Two members of the public had registered their intent to table questions at the meeting. 
 

The first question came from Mr Darron Abbott: 
 

“I attach a copy of a response to a recent freedom of information request in which I 
requested information regarding the contract with Enfortis Limited. Considering Enfortis 
was not incorporated until 31 December 2020 the information supplied was very 
intriguing. It did seem to confirm that no serious procurement process was entered into 
when choosing the company. The response to my question of what checks were carried 
out to ensure that the company had the correct licences to carry out the duties it was 
employed to do the response was we checked the legal entity at companies house, by 
which I understand to be we did nothing. The reply I am afraid just displays how 
confusing and convoluted this whole matter is. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 
 

My question centres around the various dates and contracts could you be so kind as to 
put some meat on the bones and give details of the name of the businesses involved in 
the negotiations and contracts entered into?” 

 

In response the Chairman replied: 
 

As set out within the report tabled tonight, the Council entered into an environmental 
crime enforcement contract, under The Concession Contract Regulations 2016, with 
Optimal Risk Group Ltd in August 2020.  Upon it reviewing its business model, a new 
company, Enfortis Ltd, was established to focus specifically on local authority 
enforcement, which resulted in the contract with Optimal Risk Group Ltd being novated 
to Enfortis Ltd on 17 March 2021. 
 
Mr Abbot then tabled a supplementary question: 
 
Mr Chairman, please indulge me a little here.  So let me get this straight, it appears that 
these contracts are with a company called Optimal Risk Group Limited, not Optimal Risk 
limited as stated by Jenny Moore in an email to me on the 20th May 2021.  I can 
therefore assume that this is the same Optimal Risk Group Limited that is mentioned as 
being part of the 3GS arrangement as mentioned in 2.1 of tonight’s report.  The 
arrangement that was approved by Cabinet on the 12 February 2018 and I assume is 
the same 3GS that requested that their contract to be terminated as it was not cost 
effective as reported by Boston Standard on the 13 February 2019. 
The officers then go back to this Company just a few months later and negotiate new 
contract.  A Company that had let the Council down just a few months earlier this does 
not make sense.  From the answers I received to my Freedom of Information request 
there appears to be very little of a procurement process, instead it appears to me we 
pick up the phone to our mates that have not wanted to come out and play such a short 
while ago.  The officers then set up two contracts one of which that is now with Enfortis 
Limited that seems to guarantee a bumper pay out by just selecting 2 sites that are 
causing problems.  I think the term I am looking for is cherry picking.  Enfortis Limited 
get to keep the whole proceeds from the contract whilst lumbering the ratepayers of 
Boston with the cost of keeping the sites clean and tidy. 
We have heard nothing about the results of the first contract that I can only assume is 
still being operated by Optimal Risk Group, if it is why does the Council now seem to 
have another contract for litter enforcement with a company called Kingdom Local 
Authority Support Limited it seems we are now overloaded with enforcement contracts. 
So my supplementary question is that I respectfully request that tonight’s meeting sticks 
to investigating how these contracts have been set up and the officers roll in the 
procurement process, the negotiations and the reasons why certain decisions were 
made regarding the selecting sites etc.  Rather than the rights and wrongs of fly tipping.  
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Abbott for the supplementary question and confirmed a 
written response would be provided within seven working days of the meeting.  
 
The second question came from Mr Dewars: 
 

When are they going to catch and convict fly tippers from around town from hmo’s?  For 
instance Frampton Place, Carlton Road, Argyle Street Bartle cres etc etc.  Whilst they 
allow this to continue, it will continue to get worse and escalate as it is doing as there is 
no deterrent. 
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 

 

In response the Chairman replied: 
 

Fly tipping is a criminal offence; the Council does not allow fly tipping to happen.  
Wherever there is substantive evidence that identifies perpetrators, for example, from 
video footage or through substantial evidence being found within fly tips themselves, the 
Council, directly or through its enforcement contractor, will take appropriate enforcement 
action.  
Catching fly-tippers in the act where overt surveillance is not an option is extremely 
difficult; it relies on there being a witness who is able to identify perpetrators and being 
prepared to make a formal witness statement of the offence.  The witness may also 
need to provide evidence in a Court if the offence is not discharged by payment of a 
Fixed Penalty Notice and the offence is subsequently prosecuted.   
If anyone has any such substantive evidence the Council will be very happy to meet with 
them and take appropriate statements. 
In addition to taking action, the Council has employed staff, part of whose role it is to 
engage with landlords and tenants of HMO’s and landlords and tenants of other privately 
rented homes to try and ensure that all rubbish is disposed of correctly.  Again, for 
clarity, the Council does not allow fly tipping, it is a criminal offence and it will take 
appropriate enforcement action against those it has substantive evidence against.  
 

Mr Dewars then tabled a supplementary question: 
 

I would just like to say that I did not receive the response to the question until the 11 th 
hour at 2.30pm today which I did not see until I got I got home from work at 5.30pm 
giving me no time to consider my answer and response.  This is unfair on your part.  
You say fly tipping is a criminal and the council does not allow it to happen. I wonder 
why the police are not involved. You employ staff to engage with the landlords and 
tenants and you have 2 different outside parties Enfortis and KL to police it.  However, 
excluding the bottle back fiasco they have only issued over the last five and a half 
months 72 fines, which is approximately 3 per week and only 40, had been paid.  Boston 
Borough Council states zero tolerance on fly tipping this week but as far as the fly 
tipping is concerned, it is as bad now as it has always been.  My question is why is the 
town in such a mess?  
 

The Chairman thanked Mr Dewars for the supplementary question and confirmed a 
written response would be provided within seven working days of the meeting.  
 
5   CONTRACT ARRANGEMENTS - FLY TIPPING ENFORCEMENT 

 
The Chairman presented the report reading it in full, confirming it had been requested by 
committee to scrutinise the background and procurement and contract arrangements put 
in place with a third party contractor for overt surveillance capability to target fly tipping 
and littering offences within the Borough.  Cabinet had approved adoption of the 
Governments Litter Strategy for England in 2018 that introduced new powers for 
Councils to issue fixed penalty notices for small-scale fly tipping offences.  Cabinet had 
also approved at the same meeting, the extension of the contract with its’ existing 
provider at that time 3GS to progress the overt surveillance which was provided to 3GS 
by optimal risk Group Limited.  The model approved by Cabinet was a ‘no cost to the 
Council’ model. 
Procurement advice received in November 2018 confirmed that such a nil cost pilot 
contract for environmental crime enforcement fell under The Concession Contract 
Regulations 2016. Concession contracts at that time had a threshold for an UE tender of 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 
 

£4,551,433. The current pilot contract for one-year fell very significantly under the 
prevailing threshold value such that there remained no requirement for formal 
competition.  
Based on the advice received, in early 2019, what turned out to be a lengthy period of 
negotiation commenced with Optimal Risk Group Ltd for the provision and management 
of such an overt surveillance enforcement service. A contract was entered in to in 
August 2020 that expires 24 August 2021. 
As expected by Cabinet, the current pilot contract was entered in to in order to assess 
the longer-term feasibility and effectiveness of a ‘no cost’, overt surveillance offer to the 
Council.  For clarity, the Council does not ‘pay’ the contractor directly under this pilot, 
rather, the contractor retains the money it receives through its issue of Fixed Penalty 
Notices.   
Post contract award, Optimal Risk Group Ltd reviewed its business model that resulted 
in a new company, Enfortis Ltd, being established to focus specifically on enforcement 
activity for local authorities. Legal advice was secured by officers regarding use of 
Enfortis Ltd that resulted in the novation of the contract to the company 
 

On conclusion of the presentation of the report the Chairman advised he has submitted 
a further four questions in addition to the 14 within appendix A of the report, and read 
out the 4 additional questions: 
 
As the Guidance states (DEFRA Part 1A Effective Enforcement Sept 2019 Code of 
Practice), Enforcing Authorities remain responsible for the whole enforcement process 
whether they contract it out or not.  So, how does the Council approach the exercise of 
discretion objectively, as also specified in the Guidance, when operating a zero-
tolerance policy?   
Response: 
A FPN review panel has been established to review informal challenges of liability for 
the offence to which the FPN relates.  Zero tolerance does not mean not having a 
review process, rather it means taking a robust line against fly tipping within a robust 
framework that is what the Council has done and is doing. 
 

What means has the Council, or its contractor, undertaken to ensure that all residents 
are familiar with the Council’s policy on recycling items through its containers sited at 
both ASDA and Tesco? 
Response: 
The containers at the centres are not the Council’s, but owned by various organisations 
including Glass Recycling UK, the County Council and the Salvation Army amongst 
others.  Extensive media promotion has been undertaken about fly tipping including fly 
tipping at bring sites, with signage being displayed at each site.   
 

Is the contract viewed as good value for money, despite the fact that all potential 
revenue from fines has been lost? 
Response: 
The contract was entered into as a ‘no cost to the Council’ contract as per member 
expectation. 
Does the Council consider the contractual arrangement with the contractor to have been 
a public relations success? 
Response: 
Since the programme commenced and the various PR messages have followed, 
reported fly tipping has fallen significantly; from 377 incidents in April, to 277 in May to 
202 in, June suggesting a valuable message is getting through. 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 

 

 
At this point in the proceedings’ the Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 Officer 
addressed the meeting stating he wanted to put some context to the report to answer 
some of the points raised and that whilst the report was around contractual 
arrangements, there was a wider interest in respect of fly tipping.   There had been 
30000 visits this year to bring sites with 568 FPN’s (Fixed Penalty Notice) issued 
resulting in 98% of visits being successful.  Of the 568 FPN’s only 33 had been 
challenged with 26 upheld.  Committee needed to recognise the bigger issue in that 
prior to the new practice being introduced the number of fly tipping incidents had been in 
the region of between 300/400 per month. This year in April there had been 377 
incidents; in May 227 incidents and in June 202.  Whilst it was a small sample size, it 
demonstrated that the incidents in fly tipping had halved over the last two months. There 
was a positive story around the questions raised. 
 
Significant committee deliberation followed with considerable repetition of comments. 
Non-committee members in attendance also addressed this meeting.  The following 
minute identifies the key questions asked with responses given with a conclusion 
summary of the key comments.  
 
Councillor Yvonne Stevens requested notation within the minutes, that in her previous 
role as Portfolio Holder for the service, Mr Christian Allen had been her lead officer.  
Councillor Stevens stated that his behaviour had been exceptional, he had been 
dedicated and thorough and she had never had any cause to doubt him.  He was a 
credit to the Council and she did not want anything from this meeting to taint him. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 officer further stated that he had been 
looking into the service area over the previous three weeks and had found he could not 
fault the staff whose conduct and effort were exemplary and who were simply following 
the process asked of them and he had nothing but admiration for the officers. 
 
A Member questioned if the meeting would also address the members of the pubic who 
unfortunately, due to their goodwill in thinking they were doing the right thing in putting 
bag beside the bins, had received FPN’s.  It appeared that the biggest complaint 
currently was from those fined for trying to recycle and not being aware of the 
procedure.  Furthermore, the bins at Tesco and ASDA were not Council owned bins, nor 
did they sit on Council property:  how could the Council levy a fine for a fly tip that was 
not on Council land?  It was permissible to put 4 bin liners out alongside a green bin on 
the morning of collection, as side waste, but if they bin liner is alongside a bin in a lay-by 
it was fly tipping.  Greater communication was required throughout all of the residents. 
 
Referencing the bins at ASDA and Tesco a Member asked how often the various bins 
were emptied.  
The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer advised that clothing bins were 
emptied 5 times per week, cardboard bins twice a week and glass bins emptied 
fortnightly which was an issue.  The current operator who collected the glass came from 
Barnsley and the Council would be looking into this further to try to increase collections. 
Furthermore, responses from the operators who collected both clothing and cardboard 
had noted that those bins were not always full, although bin liners were still beside them.  
There appeared to be some sort of myth in that people thought the bins to be full when 
they were not. 
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 
 

Seeking clarification on who was responsible for clearing from private land, a Member 
noted the gov.uk site said the Council was responsible, whilst the fly tipping framework 
appeared to say the opposite.  
The Environment Supervisor advised that in respect of fly tipping if the land was open to 
the public by means of payment or implied permission then the Council was entitled to 
carry out clearance:  the Council could also carry out enforcement on private land with 
the permission of the owner.  
 
Querying the word ‘Novated’ within the legal implications on page 7 of the report, a 
member asked for clarification of it in context to the report in line with its’ definition of 
‘being with the consent of the remaining party’. As the Council was the other party, had 
Cabinet been consulted about the change of the name from Optimal Risk Group Ltd to 
Enfortis, or had it been done under delegated powers? 
The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 Officer advised that Optimal Risk Group Ltd 
were entitled to change their name. There was no requirement to take it back to Cabinet. 
The Monitoring Officer advised that Novated was a legal term often used in contracts 
meaning consent must not be unreasonably withheld.  As the change of name was a 
straightforward process with no reason to refuse then it would not go back to Cabinet. 
 
Stating he had received complaints from a number of members of the public in respect 
of FPN’s they had received, a Member questioned why a driver of a car received an 
FPN when a passenger in the car had fly-tipped from the vehicle.  They further asked 
why Enfortis had refused a member of the public the option of instalments to pay their 
fine when they were unable to do so in one payment.  Furthermore, the Member noted 
his concern at the rise in the charge levied to £400 and asked what the right of appeal 
was to the Council.  
The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 Officer confirmed that the registered keeper 
of the car would be the person fined for any littering activity from their vehicle and that 
Enfortis should offer instalment payments.  Clarifying the right of appeal the 
Environment Supervisor confirmed that there was no right of appeal to the Council under 
section 33 of the Environment Agency Protection Act.  Historically the act had been 
subject to prosecution charges, however changes in legislation led to the introduction of 
the FPN’s and the right of appeal now was through the Magistrates’ court.  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Waste addressed the meeting at this point in the proceedings 
and confirmed that whilst new to the position, they were extremely optimistic moving 
forward.  They confirmed that they had been upset about those members of the public 
caught up in the FPN’s issued for fly tipping, when they had genuinely thought they had 
done the right thing in leaving waste beside the bins:  however, they had also been 
appalled at the amount of white goods left at the bins. The Portfolio Holder further noted 
that whilst attempting to make the town cleaner there had been a crossover of people in 
respect of FPN’s.  A review had taken place with some fines rescinded. Agreeing 
previous comments in respect of clearer communications, the Portfolio Holder confirmed 
that discussions were ongoing for improved signage at Tesco.  ASDA had already 
received new signage which included 2 large signs in multiple languages, very clearly 
stating not to leave anything beside the bins, and stickers would be issued in due course 
to go in the bin lids to identify on opening, what that bin was for. Addressing the issue of 
the current glass collection schedule, the Portfolio Holder advised that a local based 
operator would be preferable to improve the rate of collections and work was on ongoing 
to find such an operator. 
  

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 

 

Referring back to the contractual process a Member asked if the Council had requested 
references for Enfortis, in line with the same procedure when employing staff.  What 
background did Enfortis have that made the officers feel the Council should use their 
services?  The Member further asked if was possible to see a percentage breakdown of 
residency of those who had received the FPN’s in respect of Boston borough residents 
and residents outside the borough. 
The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 officer advised he would provide the 
information after the meeting. 
The Environment Officer advised that the percentage information was available and she 
would provide the breakdown direct to Members after the meeting.  
 
Seeking clarification on the future of Enfortis a Member asked, if having made around 
£130k with no outlay, would they continue to do so in the future should the Council want 
a percentage of the income and would they take the camera equipment away if they did 
not continue.  
A Member also asked if Enfortis had claimed back any forgiven fines from the Council, 
as they would be disadvantaged in a loss of revenue, 
The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 officer advised that once the pilot scheme 
ended a full tendering exercise would take place for the future operator.  Enfortis had 
paid for the camera equipment and installation so it would be theirs to take away should 
they wish.  The Council had received no claim for a refund on any rescinded fine, but 
they could do so, they were a legitimate operator and it was a subject for consideration 
taken from the pilot scheme into the tendering process. 
The Monitoring Officer noted that Enfortis had expenses throughout the pilot scheme 
with back office staff taking calls, facilitating the fines and maintaining the camera 
equipment.  
 
Addressing the meeting for the first time the Portfolio Holder for Finance began by 
confirming he had seen the new signage at ASDA and stated it was very clear and there 
was no reason for any further misunderstanding by any persons in respect of use of the 
bins.  The reduction in incidents clearly indicated that the public were gaining a greater 
understanding. Noting a question tabled by one the members of public during their 
representation he stressed that that the Police would only become involved when there 
was clear evidence and/or witnesses to an incident.  
Referring to the contract due to expire, the Portfolio Holder referred to and email he 
received from Victoria Burgess’s on the 17.06.2.  The emailed stated the contract had 
been signed on 21st August 2020, commenced on 24th August 2020 and would 
terminate on 24th August 202I.  The Portfolio Holder further confirmed that it was a one-
year pilot project to assess the feasibility for overt surveillance without the Council 
paying for it. There was no competitive tender due to it being a pilot scheme.  
The Portfolio Holder confirmed he too had raised questions when the subject came to 
public prominence. The Assistant Director – Waste had confirmed that legal advice had 
been taken in respect of the change of name; that it was the officer’s opinion that 
Enfortis had been efficient during the pilot scheme and that the main business of 
Optimal Group Limited was security and enforcement.  Concluding the Portfolio Holder 
advised he had spoken with officers’ in respect of moving forward and had been advised 
that negotiations were underway in respect of the tendering exercise.  
 
A Member stated he realised the reasoning behind the supermarket sites being the 
focus of enforcement due to the evidence of activity at the sites. However, he 
questioned the decrease in the actual number of incidents with many existing hot spots 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 
 

increasing in incidents both in the town and in rural areas.  The current practice of the 
bin collection service emptying bins, but then leaving all the bags for the Fly-Tipping 
team to clear up, only served to make those leaving the bags out to think it was okay to 
do so.  Referring to the camera’s the Member queried why Lincolnshire County Council 
who owned both the pavements and lampposts, failed to both acknowledge there was a 
problem and refused siting of the camera’s on their lampposts.  The Member agreed 
greater education was required but the primary need within the hot spot residential 
areas was either camera installation or bigger bins.   
The Environment Supervisor advised that negotiations were ongoing between Enfortis, 
Boston Borough Council and Lincolnshire County Council and other sites within the town 
would receive camera coverage.  The two supermarkets had been the most prolific 
spots and had not been cherry picked.  Enforcement had always taken place at the bring 
sites although it had been difficult to do as it was reliant on officers’ going through the 
bags to source evidence.  The reduction in incidents would allow redeployment of 
resources elsewhere. 
 
Stating his primary concern was he saw lot of unfairness in the current system, a 
Member noted that if he was speeding the enforcer would have to deliver the notice in 
14 days or it became invalid.  He further stated that from what he gathered, a lot of the 
FPN’s issued were after a significant time after the alleged offence took place.  Noting 
he was a champion of reducing littering and fly –tipping, the Member stated he wanted 
the Council to do it fairly. It was not fair and was unacceptable when FPN’s turned up 
some months after a member of the public had in all good faith, left the bags aside the 
bins. Referencing earlier comments about the new signage at ASDA the Member further 
asked when was this new signage erected and were those FPN’s received before the 
new signage was put up, if so that it is unfair of those people. 
A further question referred to the drop-off points / charity sites.  Was the Council 
responsible for emptying the bins indirectly through the contractor? In the eyes of moral 
fairness if a bin was full and a person had made the journey for charity, then why should 
they not leave it beside the charity bin if they wished to donate to charity?  Would it be 
possible to agree some form of contract with the recycling companies to keep emptying 
them on a more regular basis?   With no overfill there would be no problem.   
Finally while reading from the report the Member noted that the document states 
Enfortis is to help the borough catch people committing offences, but it seems to be 
simply targeting certain areas.  What other areas they work in within the borough? They 
should be working borough wide and not just at specific sites and lay-bys.  
The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 Officer advised he would respond to the 
member after the meeting. 
 

Stating he fully supported the work of the Fly Swat Team and all the refuse operatives, a 
Member expressed his gratitude that the Chairman had sought to bring the report to the 
meeting.  He stated that Councillors had learned from the meeting that it had been an 
officer delegation to sign the contract and questioned why the decision was not been 
tabled through the scrutiny system first, noting that if it had been, the Council would not 
be in the mess it was, in respect of public relations.  
Councillors knew nothing of the decision: the Fly Tipping MWG knew nothing of it, albeit 
they had talked about it coming, but knew no dates or information on the procedure.  
The Councillor voiced his sympathy for the previous Portfolio Holder and asked who had 
signed the contract; why had Councillors not been fully informed and moving forward, 
could any future decision in respect of the service, be considered by scrutiny first. 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 

 

The Deputy Chief Executive – Section 151 Officer advised that there was a time line of 
member involvement including an enquiry evening and member briefing and he would 
provide the information after the meeting.  He further noted that he would need to take 
legal advice in respect of releasing the name of the officer who signed the contract. 
 

Questioning the time line of issuing the FPN’s a Member asked if there was data for the 
preceding months, as it appeared there had been a rush of issuing ahead of the expiry 
of the pilot scheme. 
The Environment Supervisor advised that camera enforcement had started in November 
2020.  However, there had been a delay in the issuing of the fines due to the Council 
receiving permission from the DVLA to share its data with Enfortis.  The DVLA had 
apologised for the delay, Enfortis were acting as the Council’s agent and as such, 
entitled to receive the information.  
 
Members questioned the current operation at Household Waste Recycling Centre that 
continued to cause problems for residents in both opening hours and the booking 
system.  Members still received complaints from residents about turning up at the right 
time only to be told the bin for their goods was full, resulting in them having to take their 
waste back home.  Issues were on going in respect of booking a convenient time slot, 
alongside the unacceptable opening hours for people working long hours. Issues had 
also arisen with private citizens who had turned up with their own vans and been turned 
away, albeit it they only had their own household goods to dispose of.  There was 
general agreement that the previous site at Slippery Gowt had been a far better facility, 
accepting all goods with the operators being very helpful on site unlike the ones at the 
new site. The old site normally had capacity to accommodate everyone with opening 
hours allowing more flexibility for residents. 
A Member suggested that with the ongoing increasing fly tips of white goods throughout 
the Borough, would it not be easier for the site to accept white goods.  Any increased 
cost would be offset by the teams deploying their resources elsewhere.  
Councillor Stevens advised that in her previous role as Portfolio Holder for Waste that 
she had been in working with a member of Lincolnshire County Council to get rid of the 
booking system at Boston and confirmed permits were available for private vans on line.   
A Member further confirmed that they had witnessed a significant increase of fly tipping 
in and around the lanes near the old site after its closures. 
 
SUMMARY OF AGREED COMMENTS: 
 

 Appreciation to the Chairman for requesting the report. 
 Clearer and greater communication was required across the borough in respect 

of how to recycle 
 Moving forward siting and enforcement was required across the whole Borough 

and not just within the town at hot spots.  
 A report to be taken through the scrutiny process, prior to any decision being 

made on any future enforcement operation.  
 The concerns raised respect of the existing operation at the Household Recycling 

Centre to be taken forward with the Strategic Waste Partnership.  
 

RECOMMENDED:  That the committee agreed to 
 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 July 2021 
 

1. Request that officers who attend the Strategic Waste Partnership on behalf of Boston 
Borough Council, continue to raise the concerns expressed in the meeting in respect 
of accessibility and the current booking system at the Household Recycling Centre. 

 
2. That all comments raised in the debate be captured within a themed document in a 

report format, for the Councillor Stephen Woodliffe the Chairman of the Corporate 
and Community Committee to present to Cabinet, to form part of the review process 
in respect of the Enforcement contract. 

 

6   SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 
 

The Interim Deputy Chief Executive – People presented the report reaffirming to 
Members that when the alliance had been formed in July 2020, it had been agreed by 
both Council’s that a joint scrutiny panel would be convened to undertake scrutiny of the 
alliance and merged workforce. 
For confirmation, Members were reminded that appendix B within the report, had 
already been agreed at Full Council and the report sought only to seek agreement of 
Appendix A, the scoping document.  The time line for the review to begin in July 2021 
and conclude towards the end of August 2021 with the resulting report coming back to 
the Corporate and Community Committee.  
 
Committee Members did not question or comment on the report and agreed the 
recommendation unanimously. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Corporate and Community Committee agree the scoping document at 
Appendix A of the report. 

 
7   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Committee agreed the following reporting onto its work programme: 
 
The meeting scheduled on the 22nd July 2021 to be re-scheduled to the 20th July to 
accommodate the South Lincolnshire Council Partnership report.  This would be a one 
item agenda 
 

An additional meeting scheduled in August to accommodate the report in respect A 
Town Council for Boston. 
 

The meeting on the 16 September to accommodate two reports: 
 
1. Pilgrim Hospital Operating Model – United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust (ULHT) 
 

2. Consideration of Upgrading Case Management System (confidential item) 
 

Reporting for meetings thereafter for agreement at future meetings. 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 9.30 pm 

Page 10



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

20 July 2021 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor Anton Dani (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown and 
Judith Skinner 
 
In attendance: Councillors Paul Skinner, Leader, and Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder. 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Interim Deputy Chief Executive (People), Assistant Director - Assets, IT 
Projects and Development Officer, Senior Democratic Services Officer and Democratic 
Services Apprentice 
 
8   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Martin Howard, Frank Pickett and 
Yvonne Stevens. 
 
9   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
10   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
11   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The date of the next meeting, to consider a community governance review, was 
confirmed as 19th August (subsequently changed to 17th August). 
 
The Chief Executives of United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust (ULHT) and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), and other relevant representatives, would be invited to 
attend the Committee’s September meeting, though consideration would be given to 
arranging a joint meeting with East Lindsey District Council.   
 
Members were urged to submit questions in advance to enable guests to have relevant 
information available.  There was a request for the representatives to provide 
information regarding the knock-on effects of the loss of the urology service on other 
emergency services. 
 
12   SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

 
The Chief Executive presented a report, which outlined a proposal to extend the 
Council’s existing strategic alliance with East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) to include 
South Holland District Council (SHDC).  The draft Business Case was attached to the 
report at Appendix A and the Memorandum of Agreement at Appendix B. 
 

Page 11



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
20 July 2021 
 

On 28th June 2021, Full Council had agreed ‘in principle’ to explore the opportunity to 
create a three-Council strategic partnership, resolving that the Business Case be 
presented at a Member Briefing and forwarded to the Committee for scrutiny.  The all-
Member Briefing had taken place on 14th July.   
 
The Chief Executive gave a PowerPoint presentation of the draft Business Case and 
Memorandum of Agreement.  The model proposed was, essentially, an extension of the 
existing two-Council alliance model, with each Council retaining its political 
independence and public accountability, supported by a shared workforce.  It was 
proposed to call the new partnership the ‘South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership’. 
 
Reviewing the draft documents as part of the scrutiny process gave Members the 
opportunity to provide feedback to shape the documents so that they would be 
acceptable to Full Council. 
 
In addition to the Committee’s scrutiny, a joint scrutiny panel between the current 
alliance Councils, Boston and ELDC, was being formed to scrutinise the draft Council 
report and associated documents. 
 
Members were asked to review the draft documents and provide their findings and 
recommendations for inclusion as an Appendix to the report to Council on 2 August 
2021, to order to inform the debate and ensure the governing documents were 
satisfactory to allow Members to progress with the partnership.  They would also be 
forwarded to those Councillors at BBC and ELDC involved in the joint scrutiny exercise. 
 
The Chief Executive concluded by informing Members that the partnership would be the 
largest in the country and was arousing national interest.  Moving ahead with the 
proposal would put the Councils in a good position in terms of any forthcoming 
Devolution proposals.  It was noted that each authority would retain its workforce; 
therefore, recruitment would be carried out to fill any vacancies that arose. 
 

Following the Chief Executive’s presentation, Members’ comments included: 
 

 Recognition of the significant opportunities the partnership would present in terms of 
economic development and speaking as a region with one voice 

 The important increase in resilience that a larger workforce would provide and the 
ability to access more experienced staff to achieve more ambitious projects and 
attract more funding 

 The chance to improve marketing to increase tourism and attract more businesses to 
the area 

 The opportunities for staff to advance their careers and specialise  

 Appreciation of the pace the process was taking 
 
Concerns raised by Members included: 
 

 The Council could risk losing its individual identity; it needed to be strengthened, not 
simply retained 

 Customer service staff should have local knowledge 

 The whole of the borough’s offer should be promoted more visibly  

Page 12



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
20 July 2021 

 

 The financial projections appeared speculative; other partners seemed to benefit 
more than Boston; and staffing costs could increase 

 
In response to these and other questions, the Chief Executive advised Members that: 
 

 The Business Case set out indicative financial contributions, but it was for Members 
to decide the structure and costs 

 Experience indicated that joining workforces produced savings; reducing the number 
of officers from the top layer of management provided resources for more operational 
staff, resulting in improved resilience 

 Portfolio Holders were to discuss the South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Plan 
with the Assistant Director – Planning 

 The alliance between SHDC and Breckland DC had come to a mutually-agreed 
ending on an amicable basis as both authorities recognised it would prevent them 
taking up opportunities that might arise from the progression of Devolution and Local 
Government Reorganisation 

 

Action: AF 
Advise Councillor Dani of the value of income from the Council’s assets.  [The value of 
assets was given as approximately £36m] 

 
The Leader advised Members that the proposal would increase the Council’s capacity 
significantly and provide more financial resources.  There had been extensive 
partnership working between the authorities’ leaders since the outbreak of the pandemic 
and there were several service areas already operating in partnership with the other two 
authorities, so trust already existed between them.  Extending the alliance would 
increase opportunities for improvement for the Council; the alternative would be cuts.   
 
During debate, Member’s main comments and suggestions were as follows: 
 

 Name the proposed partnership the “East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership”   
 
This would more accurately reflect the wide area covered and differentiate it from the 
South East Lincolnshire partnership formed between SHDC and BBC previously to 
establish a Joint Local Plan. 
 

 Add the following to Section 4 Scope of Services, to populate the list of Boston’s 
Lead Specialisms and Highly Performing Services: 

 
1. Success in the delivery of affordable housing through various partnerships – 750 

new affordable homes over the last five years, one new home every 2.43 days. 
2. Securing external funding for community benefit – for example, Towns Fund, 

Housing Infrastructure Fund, Controlling Migration fund, Community Champions 
fund 

3. Strategic partner engagement – for example, with Boston College, Port of Boston, 
Platform Housing Group 

 

 In Section 9: Programme Governance & Management, remove the self-evident 
responsibilities from the list for Programme Board Members  

 

Page 13



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
20 July 2021 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee’s main observations be reported to Full Council 
on 2nd August. 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.52 pm 
 

Page 14



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

17 August 2021 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor Anton Dani (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Paul Goodale, Frank Pickett and Judy Welbourn 
 
In attendance: Councillors Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder, and 
Jonathan Noble 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets, Interim Deputy Chief Executive (People), Democratic 
Services Delivery Manager and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
13   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Alan Bell, David Brown, Viven Edge, 
Martin Howard, Judith Skinner and Yvonne Stevens.  Councillor Judy Welbourn was 
attending to substitute for Councillor Howard and Councillor Paul Goodale was attending 
to substitute for Councillor Bell.   
 
14   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillor Paul Goodale declared that he was Chairman of the Boston Town Area 
Committee (BTAC), Councillor Stephen Woodliffe that he was Vice-Chairman of BTAC 
and Councillors Alison Austin and Anton Dani that they were BTAC Members.   
 
15   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
16   COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 

 
The Democratic Services Delivery Manager presented a report, which set out 
information relating to the possibility of conducting a Community Governance Review 
(CGR). 
 
The Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) had issued a request that the Council 
considered conducting a Community Governance Review of the town wards of the 
borough area under section 80 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007.  The details of the request from BTAC were set out in Appendix A. 
 
The Committee was asked to consider the information and options contained in the 
report and make a recommendation to Cabinet on whether a CGR should be 
undertaken. 
 
The purpose of a CGR was to secure an arrangement that would bring about improved 
community engagement, better local democracy and result in more effective and 
convenient delivery of local services.  
 

Page 15



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
17 August 2021 
 

The CGR had to take account of the identities and interests of the community in that 
area and those arrangements for community representation and engagement already in 
place.  
 
Members were asked to consider if this would be achieved by conducting a CGR of the 
Boston Town wards or whether the current governance arrangements of the town wards 
– being an unparished area with BTAC raising a precept for a special area expense 
account to deliver specific services – was effective and the preferred method. 
 
The report set out the issues considered by BTAC, which led to the Committee’s 
decision to request that a CGR be carried out for the town wards of the borough area 
with a view to creating a Boston Town Council to operate in the same way as a parish 
council.  A copy of the report and minutes of the meeting were attached to the report for 
information at Appendix 1.   
 
Cabinet’s consideration of the request had concluded that the views of Scrutiny 
Members be sought before making a recommendation to Full Council.   
 
The report outlined the CGR process and the guidance a principal council had to have 
regard to, issued by the Secretary of State and the Electoral Commission, was attached 
to the report at Appendix B.  It also set out a number of matters that should be taken into 
account that would have a direct strategic, financial and operational impact on the 
Borough Council.  There was an alternative process to a standalone CGR, which would 
be for Town Councils to be created following local government reorganisation of an 
electoral area or combined electoral areas. 
 
If Full Council was to agree to trigger a Community Governance Review for the Boston 
Town wards outside of any future local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire, the 
expectation would be for it to commence in October/November 2021 for completion 
within a year.  As there were no elections scheduled for 2022 this would provide the time 
necessary to concentrate on the CGR process. 
 
The first step in the CGR process would be to convene a cross-party working group of 
Members and appropriate officers to agree terms of reference, considering the current 
arrangements, including wards, number of members and ratio of electors.  Guidance set 
out that “the terms of reference should be appropriate to local people and their 
circumstances and reflect the specific needs of their communities.”  The working group 
would also consider the method of consultation with the public and stakeholders and 
agree a communications and consultation plan. 
 
The working group might also consider requesting assistance from external 
organisations with experience and expertise in the conduct of CGRs, e.g. the National 
Association of Local Councils and other local authorities who had conducted similar 
reviews. 
 
The options available for consideration were to: 
 
a) Recommend that a Community Governance Review for the town centre wards be 

triggered; 
b) Recommend that a Community Governance Review not be undertaken at this time; 

Page 16



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
17 August 2021 

 

c) Recommend that a Community Governance Review be re-considered when the 
direction of local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire was known. 

 
The Chairman invited the Deputy Leader, as Portfolio Holder, to address the Committee 
regarding a suggestion made at a Member Briefing on the topic, that the CGR could 
cover the whole borough area to include the parish councils.  The Deputy Leader 
pointed out that this would have much higher cost implications and would require 
external assistance as there was insufficient internal resources available to conduct 
such a wide-ranging review.  
 
Members’ comments included: 

 The need to protect the borough’s precious heritage assets, such as the Regalia and 
the Guildhall and consider the loss of borough status 

 The interests of a section of Wyberton residents who, following the last ward 
boundary review, paid the BTAC precept, but were not represented by BTAC or by a 
parish council 

 Parish councils should be asked their views 

 Concern about the cost of a Town Council, how it would be run and how it would 
affect the role of the Mayor 

 The need to raise public awareness of the area’s governance arrangements, but 
recognition of a level of apathy 

  
The Democratic Services Delivery Manager advised the Committee that the borough 
ward boundaries could not be changed by a CGR and that parish councils would have to 
be consulted before including them in a CGR.   
 
The BTAC Chairman referred to the greater responsibilities that BTAC had taken on in 
recent years, such as maintenance of public conveniences and the running of events, 
including the Christmas Market, yet the Council had the power to direct how BTAC spent 
its money, which was not acceptable.  A borough-wide review should be undertaken in 
order to include the parishes, as parish councils would be affected by this and any future 
Local Government Review (LGR).  The report did not indicate what it cost BTAC 
currently to run its services and could not identify what a Town Council would pay or 
what services it would take on from the Council.   
 
The BTAC Chairman advised the Committee that he would be happy to go back to 
BTAC to ask if its Members would be prepared to wait until the parish councils were 
consulted to find out if they wanted a borough-wide review.   
 
Invited to comment by the Chairman, the Portfolio Holder for Finance expressed a 
preference for the option to re-consider a CGR when the direction of local government 
reorganisation for Lincolnshire was known.  There was no evidence that creation of a 
Town Council would achieve the aims of a CGR or that local democracy needed to be 
improved.  The estimated costs for a CGR were £10,000 aside from officer time and 
then there would be the cost of running a Town Council.  In addition, if LGR took place, 
a Town Council would be established in any case.   
 
The Deputy Leader pointed out that a budget had not been identified for a borough-wide 
CGR and suggested that the Council should go ahead with a town ward review, as 
recommended by BTAC, so that the process was not delayed.   

Page 17



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
17 August 2021 
 

 
The BTAC Chairman pointed out that BTAC currently paid significant recharges to the 
Council for its services.  Costs did increase in relation to localised democracy.  
However, he considered that most of Members’ questions and concerns could only be 
addressed by carrying out a CGR.  The time was right to the review to be borough-wide 
so that parishes could be included and the Council had money in reserves in order to 
fund it.     
 
The Committee then unanimously: 
 

RESOLVED to recommend that Cabinet considers a borough-wide community 
governance review (CGR) and refers back to the Boston Town Area Committee, if 
necessary, to request the Committee’s views. 

 
17   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Interim Deputy Chief Executive advised Members that representatives from the 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust (ULHT) had accepted the Committee’s invitation to 
attend its next meeting on 16th September and that representatives from the Clinical 
Commissioning Group would also be present.  Members of the Environment & 
Performance Committee would also be invited to attend.  Members were urged to 
submit questions in advance and no later than 6th September in order to allow 
representatives to prepare answers.  Guests had been advised that Members’ 
preference was that they attend in person, but they had to option to join virtually if they 
considered this necessary due to the pandemic.   
 
Another suggestion put forward was the licensing of rented properties in relation to 
properties that were not classed as Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs), but were 
perceived to be overcrowded.  The issue of empty properties was also raised.  In 
response, the Interim Deputy Chief Executive agreed to add an item on the legal 
framework for housing control to the Committee’s agenda for its January meeting. 
 

Action: JC 
Update the Committee’s work programme accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.05 pm 
 

Page 18



 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 

 
 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER (PFH) 

    

6 JULY 2021 
 

1. Contract Arrangements – Fly Tipping Enforcement 
 
2. Scrutiny Panel Topic – Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance  
 

Andy Fisher 
 

James Gilbert  

Cllr Jonathan Noble  
 
-  

    

20 JULY 2021 
 

South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 
 

James Gilbert  Cllr Nigel Welton  

    

17 AUG 2021  Community Governance Review 
 

Lorraine Bush Cllr Nigel Welton 

    

16 SEPT 2021 
 

Pilgrim Hospital Operating Model – A debate with representatives 
from the Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) and 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) 
 

Chairman /  
Andy Fisher   

  

Cllr Martin Griggs 
 
 

    

4 NOV 2021 
 

1. Committee Terms of Reference 
 
2. Consideration of Upgrading Case Management System 

(confidential) 
 

Andy Fisher 
 

James Gilbert 

- 
 

Cllr Paul Skinner 

    

13 JAN 2022 The Legal Framework For Housing Control 
 

Andy Fisher Cllr Martin Griggs 
 

    

17 FEB 2022 
 

   

    

7 APRIL 2022 
 

   

    

26 MAY 2022 
 

   

    

 
 

 
 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	Corporate & Community Committee Minutes 20.7.21
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	2 WORK PROGRAMME

